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• Tales of a Super Searcher
• Court Documents
• Legislative History
• Agency Chronologies

• Helpful Resources 
• Your Questions



Researching Court 
Documents



Challenges

• A lot of the Judiciary’s publications are not distributed 
through the FDLP

• Court documents are difficult to find using government 
sources.

• Everything isn't online (or in print).  Some court 
documents aren’t made publicly available.   

• Court structures can be confusing.

• Legal concepts and terms of art are unfamiliar.  
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Inform 
Yourself 

About Federal Courts 
(www.uscourts.gov/about-
federal-courts)

• Court Website Links

• Court Role and Structure

• Types of Cases

(Court structures = information 
sources)
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Inform Yourself 

Judicial Learning Center (judiciallearningcenter.org/levels-of-the-
federal-courts/)

Glossaries
• SCOTUSblog Glossary of Supreme Court Terms  

(www.scotusblog.com/glossary-of-legal-terms/)

• US Courts Glossary of Legal Terms (www.uscourts.gov/glossary)  

• USDOJ Legal Terms Glossary (www.justice.gov/usao/justice-101/glossary) 

• NCSC Legal Glossaries and Dictionaries (www.ncsc.org/education-and-
careers/state-interpreter-certification/legal-glossaries-and-dictionaries) 
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State Court Structure

• Court Statistics Project

• State Court Structure Charts 
(www.courtstatistics.org/state_court

_structure_charts)

• Understanding State Courts 
(www.courtstatistics.org/state-

courts) 

9/12/2023 Secrets of the Super Searchers III: Law 7

https://www.courtstatistics.org/state_court_structure_charts
https://www.courtstatistics.org/state-courts
https://www.courtstatistics.org/state_court_structure_charts
https://www.courtstatistics.org/state-courts


Can you find...?

• The complaint for Allen. V. State Board of Elections, 268 F. 
Supp. 218 (E.D. Va. 1967).  

• The pleadings for Lassiter v. Northampton County Board of 
elections, 360 U.S. 45 (1959).

• The expert report for this case, from Dr. Moore: Bradley v. 
Work, 154 F.3d 704 (7th Cir. 1998). It is a case out of Lake 
County, challenging its method of selecting judges. 

• The criminal indictment and any legal briefs/memorandum 
of law/oral argument transcripts relating to U.S. v. Chiarella 
(No. 78 Cr. 2), 450 F. Supp. 95 (SDNY 1978) – at both the 
district and 2nd circuit level.

• The criminal indictment, the SDNY order from Judge 
Charles Haight, and any legal briefs/memorandum of 
law/oral argument transcripts relating to United States v. 
Newman 664 F.2d 12 (2d Cir. 1981) (at both the district 
court and 2nd circuit levels). 
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Court Documents

Pleadings and Motions

• Complaints, Memoranda of Points and 

Authorities, Answers, Replies, Motions

• Often include the facts of the case, the 

legal issues presented in the case, and the 

legal arguments (based on mandatory and 

persuasive authority) that support or refute 

those issues. 

Briefs and Oral Argument

• Briefs

• Written documents that contain legal 

arguments designed to persuade the 

court

• Oral Argument

• Advocates’ oral presentations and 

judges’ questions
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Types of Briefs

Certiorari-stage Brief

• Certiorari-stage briefs 
are the efforts by 
parties to tell the 
court why it should or 
should not take a 
case. 

Merits Briefs

• Once the Supreme 
Court has granted 
certiorari in a case, 
each party can file 
merits briefs.

• Merits briefs tell the 
court why each party 
thinks it deserves to 
win. 

Amicus Curiae Brief

• “Friend of the court” 
brief; a brief filed by 
a person, group or 
entity that is not a 
party to the case but 
nonetheless wishes 
to provide the court 
with its perspective 
on the issue before it. 
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What is a court docket?
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Summons 
and 

complaint
Civil

IndictmentCriminal

A record of documents 
filed in a court proceeding

• Pleadings

• Briefs

• Letters

• Hearings

• Schedules 

• Transcripts

• Declarations

• Exhibits

• Orders

• Judgments

• Court Notations



Docket Sheet

A chronological list noting the 
date and description of each 
document filed in the action:

• Parties

• Attorneys

• Nature of suit code

• Filings

• Events
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Docket Sheet

Includes details that list the 
date of an event, argument, 
or document submission, as 
well as some information 
about the event.

Individual documents are 
assigned a sequential docket 
item number, includes the 
filing date of the document. 
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Docket Number
(or case number)

18-16612

year case 

was filed
individual 

case 

number

3:17-cv-00866-VC

year case 

was filed

individual 

case 

number

case 

type 

code

office where the 

case was filed
judge’s 

initials
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Q: Can you find the 
complaint for Allen v. State 
Board of Elections?

• The case was on appeal 

from Virginia (E.D. Va.) 

and Mississippi (S.D. Mis.). 

Allen v. State Board of Elections, 393 U.S. 544 (1969) (Nos. 3, 25, 

26, and 36.).  

268 F. Supp. 218 (E.D. Va. 1967) (Civ. A. No. 5041).   
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https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Allen_v._State_Bd._of_Elections


Rules of the Supreme Court

A petition for a writ of certiorari shall 
contain:

• A list of all proceedings in state and 
federal trial and appellate courts, 
including proceedings in this Court, that 
are directly related to the case in this 
Court.

• An appendix containing, in the order 
indicated:

• The opinions, orders, findings of fact, and 
conclusions of law . . . entered in 
conjunction with the judgment sought to be 
reviewed;

• Any other relevant opinions, orders, findings 
of fact, and conclusions of law entered in the 
case by courts or administrative agencies, 
and . . . those in companion cases

The joint appendix shall contain: 

• The relevant docket entries in all the 
courts below; 

• Any relevant pleadings, jury 
instructions, findings, conclusions, 
or opinions; 

• The judgment, order, or decision 
under review; and 

• Any other parts of the record that 
the parties particularly wish to bring 
to the Court's attention
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https://www.supremecourt.gov/filingandrules/rules_guidance.aspx


ProQuest Supreme Court 
Insight (1933 to present) 
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Q: Can you find the pleadings 
for Lassiter v. Northampton 
County Board of Elections?

Lassiter v. Northampton County Board of Elections, 360 

U.S. 45 (1959).  

• “I want to know how the plaintiffs presented their claim.  

This is a race/literacy test case. But the Court doesn’t 

talk about that. I wonder if the plaintiffs so pled, as race, 

and the Court ignored it. Or not.”
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Supreme Court Records and Briefs 
(resources available in 2020)
• Jerome Hall Law Library, depository for 

printed Supreme Court Briefs (1925 to date)

• Microforms collections 
• 1832-1915 (microfilm), 1916-1924 (microfiche), 

1938-1949 (microfilm), 1950-1963 (microcards), 
1976-2009 (microfiche).  

• Making of Modern Law (MOML): U.S. 
Supreme Court Records and Briefs (1832 -
1978)

• ProQuest Supreme Court Insight (1975/1976 
term – 2017/2018 term) (as of 2020)

• U.S. Supreme Court website
• Electronic versions of most filings submitted after 

November 13, 2017 are available through the 
docket for the particular case.  
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Transcript of 
Record

• The printed record of the 

proceedings and 

pleadings of a case, 

required by the 

appellate court for a 

review of the history of 

the case.
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Docket Sheet

National Archives (NARA)

• “The Engrossed Dockets 

from 1791 to 1995 have 

been scanned by the 

National Archives from 

its microfilm collection 

and are available in 

its Catalog.”
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https://catalog.archives.gov/id/1524561


Motion to 
Dismiss

Contains a review of the 
history of the litigation, 
helpful background 
documents including the 
District Court opinion, and 
the North Carolina Supreme 
Court opinion, and some 
constitutional and statutory 
history. 
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Q: Can you find an expert 
report…?

“Might you be able to find the expert report for this case, 

from Dr. Moore: Bradley v. Work, 154 F.3d 704 (7th Cir. 

1998)?  It is a case out of Lake County, [Indiana], 

challenging its method of selecting judges.” 
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If you use the PACER Court Locator (PACER’s National Index), to search for this
7th Circuit case – Bradley v. Work (96-2241) (1998) – it doesn’t appear in the results.  



PACER: Search by Specific Court
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https://pacer.uscourts.gov/
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Access the court’s legacy system from the specific court’s CM/ECF Database 



Look through the docket 
sheet for the expert report
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Look at the opinion. How does the 
appellate court refer to Moore’s 
expert report (“affidavit”)?
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Bradley v. Work, 916 F. Supp. 1446 (S.D. Ind. 1996)

AKA

Bradley, Hilbert L. v. Indiana State Election Board
CASE #: 1:91-cv-00898-LJM-VSS
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Docket for the District Court Case

• The District Court case docket lists some witness affidavits being entered:

• The docket doesn’t show Dr. Moore’s affidavit being entered.   But it does 

reference it in a motion and brief:
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7th Circuit Briefs in Microfiche

• “The same problems we have noted 
with Dr. Moore's affidavit occur with 
respect to the affidavits of State 
Representatives Charlie Brown, 
John L. Howard, and Henry Bennett, 
all of whom wished to bear witness 
to the long history of discrimination 
in the County.” 154 F.3d 704, 708 
(7th Cir. 1998).    

• Check the briefs for the appellate case 

• Bradley v. Work, 154 F.3d 704 (7th 
Cir. 1998) 

• Hoped to find an appendix with a case 
history and filings appended from the 
District court

• Fiche was missing!  
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“I could really use that report.  Are these things 
saved somewhere?  Can I go and get it?”

Phone Calls

• Clerk of the Court, United States District 
Court, Southern District of Indiana

• Chicago Federal Records Center 
(Chicago.archives@nara.gov)

• Federal Records Centers (about)   

Official Request to FRC

U.S. District Court, Southern District of 
Indiana (Indianapolis)

BRADLEY, HILBERT L. v. INDIANA STATE 
ELECTION BOARD

Date Filed: 08/09/1991

Date Terminated: 02/13/1996

Accession # 021-04-0013 
Location # 847944   
Box 14, 15 &16
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https://www.archives.gov/frc/about


“So, it’s . . . 
gone?”

I have looked through the boxes relating 
to the case for any undocketed entries, 
and also reviewed entries 246-247 and 
they refer to Moore’s affidavit as "exhibit 
3."

Exhibits are usually considered non-
record material, so this is likely why it 
isn't included in the case.  If I may be of 
any more assistance, please let me know.

Archives Technician
National Archives at Chicago
7358 S. Pulaski Road
Chicago, IL 60629
Phone: (773) 948-9001

I'm afraid I don't have a copy of the 
affidavit, and I'll also need a 
refresher on the details of the case. I 
remember working on a case 
involving judgeships in Lake County 
back in the 90s (?), but I'm a bit hazy 
on the details at this point. I've 
worked on other more recent voting 
rights cases in Lake County. That 
might be useful to you and I'll be 
happy to tell you what I can about 
them.

~Len Moore
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Q: Can you find filings for two cases at the 
district court and 2nd circuit levels?

• The criminal indictment and any legal briefs/memorandum of law/oral 
argument transcripts relating to U.S. v. Chiarella (No. 78 Cr. 2), 450 F. 
Supp. 95 (SDNY 1978), aff’d 588 F.2d 1358 (2d Cir. 1978).   

• I’m interested in those materials at both the district and 2nd circuit level. I 
already have the petitioner, government, and amici’s briefs as well as the oral 
argument transcript for the Supreme Court’s decision in Chiarella v. United 
States, 445 U.S. 222 (1980).  

• The criminal indictment, the SDNY order from Judge Charles Haight, 
and any legal briefs/memorandum of law/oral argument transcripts
relating to United States v. Newman 664 F.2d 12 (2d Cir. 1981) (at 
both the district court and 2nd circuit levels). 
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Keep a Detailed Research Log

S.D.N.Y.  
U.S. v. Chiarella, 450 F. Supp. 95 (S.D.N.Y. 
1978) (No. 78 Cr. 2).   

2nd Circuit Court of Appeals 
U.S. v. Chiarella, 588 F.2d 1358 (2d Cir. 1978) 
(No. 137, Docket 78-1201).  

PACER (Criminal 1982- ): No PACER (2000- ): No   

Bloomberg Law (1989- ): No  Bloomberg Law (1982- ): No  

Westlaw Dockets (1990- ): No  Westlaw Dockets (1997- ): No   

Westlaw, “Filings” tab of the case: No  Westlaw, “Filings” tab of the case: 4 briefs, 1 
motion

Lexis Dockets (?): No Lexis Dockets (?): No  

Lexis Briefs, Pleadings & Motions (?): No  Lexis Briefs, Pleadings & Motions (?): No

JHLL CA2 Microfilm (1984-2001): No  
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Look at the Supreme 
Court case history

Chiarella v. United States, 445 U.S. 222 (1980) (No. 78–

1202). 

• Includes docket sheet, oral argument, and the  

Government’s brief in opposition to cert  

• The docket sheet shows that the motion to dispense 

with printing the appendix was granted  
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It's Not What You Know – It’s Who You Know.

• Loan from Cornell University Law Library (2nd Cir. Briefs, microfiche). 
• Chiarella (CA2 1978)

• “Brief for Defendant-Appellant Chiarella” (appellant’s brief)

• “Brief for the United States of America” (appellee’s brief) 

• “Reply Brief for Defendant-Appellant Chiarella” (appellant’s reply brief)

• “Petition for Rehearing and Suggestion for Rehearing In Banc”  (Petition for rehearing en banc)

• Joint Appendix

• Newman (CA2 1981)
• Joint Appendix (no briefs in the fiche, not listed on Newman’s docket)

• I digitized the briefs and a lot of the filings
• Memoranda, Indictments, Opening Statements, Closing & Rebuttal Arguments, Oral Argument 

Transcripts, Conferences, Charges
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Case History for Newman v. United States, 464 U.S. 

863 (1983) (Denying Certiorari) (No. 82-1653). 

Petition for Writ of Certiorari
Appendices To Petition For A 
Writ Of Certiorari
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SEC’s Chiarella Complaint

• SEC’s Chiarella Complaint (S.E.C. v. VINCENT F. CHIARELLA, Civil 
Action No. 77-2534) 

• Emailed the SEC Librarian to inquire if the SEC keeps records of its own 
complaints

• If the complaint is in the SEC “case files,” then it is in the building.  

• If the complaint is in the SEC “permanent files,” then it is at NARA.  

• In either situation, we have to file a FOIA request in order to retrieve it. 

• SEC’s average FOIA processing time was 12 working days for simple requests 
and 515 working days for complex requests. 

• FOIA Request, www.sec.gov/forms/request_public_docs
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https://www.sec.gov/forms/request_public_docs


Drafting a FOIA Request
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Written Request Should Contain

• Your contact information

• A description of the records requested 
(including subject matter)

• An offer to pay reasonable charges for 
actual search time and for photocopies

• A statement setting an upper limit on 
the amount of money you are willing to 
pay

• A request for response within 20 
working days

• See the FOIA Wiki: Making a FOIA 
Request and FOIA.gov.

Date

Freedom of Information Act Request

Agency Head or FOIA Officer

Name of agency or agency component

Address

Dear __________:

Under the Freedom of Information Act, 5 U.S.C. § 552, I am requesting copies of 
[identify the records as clearly and specifically as possible].

If there are any fees for searching or copying the records, please let me know 
before you fill my request. [Or, please supply the records without informing me 
of the cost if the fees do not exceed $______, which I agree to pay.]

If you deny all or any part of this request, please cite each specific exemption you 
think justifies your withholding of information. Notify me of appeal procedures 
available under the law. Optional: If you have any questions about handling this 
request, you may telephone me at ___________ (home phone) or at ___________ 
(office phone).

Sincerely,

Name
Address

https://foia.wiki/wiki/Making_a_FOIA_Request
https://www.foia.gov/how-to.html


Drafting a FOIA Request

• Individual Agencies’ regulations determine appropriateness of waivers

• Educational use – free if disclosure serves a “scholarly research goal” 

• “In the public interest” – reduction or free costs

Fee Waiver

• Imminent threat to life or safety of an individual

• If requester is a reporter and there is an urgent need to inform the 
public about government activity

Expedited Review
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FOIA Requests to SEC for Court Records

• FOIA requests to Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC)
• Complaint filed by SEC in SDNY in 1977.  ☺

• The Amicus Curiae brief filed by the SEC in the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit.  ☺

• Memorandum from SEC Office of General Counsel to the Commission re: Chiarella and 
proposed rulemaking (not at SEC, transferred to NARA).

• SEC, Office of FOIA Services 

• FOIA Requests to US Department of Justice, Office of the Solicitor General 
(DOJ-OSG)

• Correspondence between Solicitor General’s Office and the SEC re: the Chiarella case 
(assigned to the “complex” processing track, time limit to respond extended by 10 days).

• Response received 10 months later, “no pertinent records found.”

• DOJ-OSG, Freedom of Information Act
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https://www.sec.gov/page/foia
https://www.justice.gov/osg/osg-freedom-information-act


FOIA Success!  
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Wonderful!  Thanks so much.  
With this and the Chiarella 
complaint, you’ve helped me find 
two lost pieces of history!



PACER

Public Access to Court Electronic 
Records

• Case and docket information 
from federal appellate, 
district, and bankruptcy courts

• Fee-based

• www.pacer.gov
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https://pacer.uscourts.gov/


PACER

Fees are $.10 per page, with 
a cap of $3.00 (30 pages) for:

• Case documents 
(excluding transcripts)

• Docket sheets
• Case-specific reports 

The fee cap does not apply 
to:

• Transcripts
• Non-case-specific reports
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https://pacer.uscourts.gov/pacer-pricing-how-fees-work
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https://pcl.uscourts.gov/pcl/pages/welcome.jsf
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https://pcl.uscourts.gov/pcl/pages/courtInformation.jsf


Alternative to 
PACER
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RECAP & CourtListener

• RECAP Archive (CourtListener) 
is a database of tens of millions 
of federal court cases and 
hundreds of millions of docket 
entries

• www.courtlistener.com/recap

• RECAP extensions capture 
PACER records from U.S. 
Federal District and Bankruptcy 
Courts

• free.law/recap

https://www.courtlistener.com/recap/
https://free.law/recap


CourtListener: Case Law
https://www.courtlistener.com/

• U.S. Supreme Court Opinions – 1791 to 

present

• U.S. Federal Appellate Court Opinions –

1920s to present for most circuits

• U.S. Federal District Court and 

Bankruptcy Court Opinions – coverage 

dependent on district

• U.S. State Supreme and Appellate Court 

Opinions – coverage dependent on state
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U.S. Supreme Court Records and Briefs Online

Open Access

• SCOTUSblog: Briefs in cases granted 

certiorari, 2007 to present.  

• U.S. Dept. of Justice, Office of the 

Solicitor General: Petitions for writ of 

certiorari and briefs filed by the Solicitor 

General, including briefs at the petition 

response stage, merits stage, and amicus 

briefs, 1985 to present.

• U.S. Supreme Court: Docket sheets, full 

text of opinions, oral argument transcripts 

and audio files, briefs (electronic versions 

of most filings submitted after November 

13, 2017, are available through the docket 

for the case). 

Legal Research Databases

• Bloomberg Law: Dockets and 
pleadings, 2003 to current (not 
comprehensive).    

• Lexis: All briefs, cases granted 
certiorari beginning after the 
1993-1994 term.

• Westlaw: Briefs filed for cases in 
which cert was granted, 
comprehensive coverage from 
1931 to present.  Briefs in 
opposition and support of 
petitions, comprehensive 
coverage from 1985 to present.  
Appendices and other records, 
coverage from 1982 to present.

Subscription Databases

• Gale’s Making of Modern Law: 
U.S. Supreme Court Briefs, 1832-
1978.  

• Nexis Uni: Amicus and merits 
briefs for cases granted certiorari 
and joint appendices, 1979 to 
present (selected earlier 
documents from 1936 to 
present). 

• ProQuest Supreme Court 
Insight: Cases granted cert, 
1933-2023 complete; 1897-1933 
being digitized.  Cert denied, 
1975-2023 complete; 1954-1975 
being digitized. 
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https://www.scotusblog.com/case-files/terms/
https://www.justice.gov/osg/supreme-court-briefs
https://www.supremecourt.gov/
https://www.supremecourt.gov/docket/docket.aspx
https://www.supremecourt.gov/opinions/boundvolumes.aspx
https://www.supremecourt.gov/oral_arguments/oral_arguments.aspx


U.S. Supreme Court Briefs: 
Tangible Collections

• Depositories of printed Supreme Court 
Briefs

• Jerome Hall Law Library, 1925 to current

• OCLC 1768669

Print Collections

• Jerome Hall Law Library, 1832 to 2009

• 1832-1915 (microfilm), 1916-1924 
(microfiche), 1938-1949 (microfilm), 1950-
1963 (microcards), 1976-2009 
(microfiche).

• OCLC 17266804

Microformat Collections
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https://www.supremecourt.gov/meritsbriefs/briefsource.aspx


U.S. Courts of Appeals Records and Briefs

Online
• Gale, The Making of Modern Law: 

Landmark Records and Briefs of the 
U.S. Courts of Appeals 

• Part I: 1950–1980 and Part II: 
1891–1950

• Not comprehensive. 
includes most-cited circuit 
cases

• Westlaw (coverage begins with 
1987).

• Lexis (coverage?)

Microformat
• Jerome Hall Law Library

• U.S. Court of Appeals, 2nd Circuit 
(1984 to 2001) (OCLC 12253812) 

• U.S. Court of Appeals, 7th Circuit 
(1990 to 2009) (OCLC 33344586) 

• U.S. Court of Appeals, 9th Circuit 
(1985/86 term to 1995/96 term) 
(OCLC 13208451)

• U.S. Court of Appeals, DC Circuit 
(1983/84 to 1992) (OCLC 
06248617)

Print
• Jerome Hall Law Library (Indiana 

University)

• U.S. Court of Appeals, 7th 
Circuit (1982 to 2000)

• OCLC 16088717 

• 7th Circuit Briefs needed 
before 1982 can be 
ordered from the Chicago 
Federal Records Center
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https://www.archives.gov/frc/chicago


Legislative History 
Research



Inform Yourself

The Legislative 
Process

(Congress.gov)

Learn about the 
Legislative Process

(Library of Congress)

The Legislative 
Process

(U.S. House of 
Representatives)
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https://podcasts.apple.com/us/podcast/starter-kit-how-a-bill-really-becomes-a-law/id1195657423?i=1000446271212
https://www.congress.gov/legislative-process
https://www.congress.gov/legislative-process
https://www.congress.gov/resources/display/content/Learn+About+the+Legislative+Process
https://www.house.gov/the-house-explained/the-legislative-process


Legislative History 
Research Resources

• Congress.gov

• GovInfo.gov

• HathiTrust

• HeinOnline

• ProQuest Congressional

• ProQuest Legislative Insight

• Printed Documents! 
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Challenges

• Tracing reintroduced legislation across multiple 

Congresses 

• Researching legislation over time

• When legislation is combined, how do you find 

committee reports and floor discussion?

• Omnibus legislation

• Finding the legislative history of a code section
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Tracing Reintroduced 
Legislation Across Multiple 
Congresses

• Q: When viewing a Congress.gov bill 

record, is there a way to see if the bill has 

been reintroduced in later Congresses 

directly from that bill record?  

• Q: What if the same substantive bill is 

reintroduced but the name is slightly or 

completely changed? 
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Tracing Reintroduced Legislation Across 
Multiple Congresses

Notice to Airmen 
Improvement Act of 

2019, H.R. 1775, 116th 
Cong. (as received in 
Senate Oct. 29, 2019). 

• Committee Report: H.R. Rep. 
No. 116-67 (2019).

Notice to Airmen 
Improvement Act of 

2021, H.R. 1262, 117th 
Cong. (as received in 

Senate, June 16, 2021). 

• Committee Report: H.R. Rep. 
No. 117-43 (2021). 

NOTAM Improvement 
Act of 2023, H.R. 346, 
118th Cong. (2023) 

(enacted). 

• No committee report.
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Tracing Reintroduced 
Legislation Across Multiple 
Congresses  

• Use keywords, legislative subject 

headings, policy area designation, and 

sponsor names in your search and 

filters.

• Look at committee reports to see if 

previous bills are mentioned in the 

legislative history section.

• The committee report for H.R. 1262, 117th 

Cong. (2021) mentions that the Subcommittee 

held a hearing in the 116th Congress but 

doesn’t reference the bill under consideration 

(H.R. 1775, 116th Cong. (2019)).  
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ProQuest Legislative 
Insight

• Enacted bill and related bills from 116th, 
117th, and 118th Congresses

• Floor discussion (Congressional Record) from 
116th, 117th, and 118th

• Committee Reports from 116th and 117th

• Hearing from 116th

• Committee Print from 118th 

Compiled Legislative History
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Q: When legislation is combined, 
how do you find committee 
reports and floor discussion?

The Build America, Buy America Act (BABAA) is section 70914 of 
Pub. Law No. 117-58 (Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act). 

The bill # is H.R. 3684, the Statutes at Large citation is 135 Stat. 1294, 
and it is in the US Code as a Statutory Note to 41 USC 8301.

I found the House Report on Congress.gov (H.R. Rep. No. 117-70), 
but it did not contain anything about section 70914/BABAA. 

I am not sure where to look next, if you have any advice. Basically, I am 
trying to figure out where this provision came from and any 
background information/discussions that informed the final provision. 
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Search in Legislation for “Build 
America, Buy America Act” 

Two bills from the 117th Congress (S. 1303 and H.R. 2810).  

The Senate bill (S. 1303) was reported by the Homeland 

Security and Governmental Affairs – S. Rep. No. 117-268. 

There is a Senate bill from the 116th Congress (S. 2056).  
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Finding floor 
discussion
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Tax Code Question

Q: Can you check whether there is 

legislative history of IRC § 4501?

• The Inflation Reduction Act of 

2022, Pub. L. No. 117-169, §

10201 (Aug. 16, 2022).

• I was hoping for "reasons for 

change" or something like that, 

explaining what Congress saw as 

the policy reason for enacting the 

provision.

9/12/2023 Secrets of the Super Searchers III: Law 67



Editorial and 
Statutory 
Notes
Prior Provisions

Effective Date

Use the Editorial Notes to 
determine how any 
amendments affected the 
statutory language.
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Are we specifically 
looking at 4501(c) and 
the word “repurchase” or 
something else in 
subsection 4501(c)?

• Thanks, Jennifer! I was 
hoping for "reasons for 
change" or something like 
that, explaining what 
Congress saw as the 
policy reason for enacting 
the provision.
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ProQuest Legislative Insight

• Search the compiled legislative history of the act for a word or phrase to trace the 

statutory language.

• Results containing your search word or phrase are highlighted in blue.  

• CHAPTER 37—"REPURCHASE OF CORPORATE STOCK” was not in the introduced version 

of the enacted bill (H.R. 5376, 117th Cong.) and it was not in the reported House bill – so, 

it’s not covered in the committee report: H.R. Rep. No. 117-130 (2021). 

• Chapter 37 -- "REPURCHASE OF CORPORATE STOCK" comes from Sen. Sherrod Brown’s 

Stock Buyback Accountability Act of 2021, S. 2758 (117th Cong.), 

www.congress.gov/bill/117th-congress/senate-bill/2758

• S. 2758 was introduced in Senate (Sept. 20, 2021) and referred to the Committee 

on Finance.

• This bill imposes a 2% excise tax on the value of any stock of certain publicly traded 

domestic and foreign corporations repurchased (i.e., redeemed) by such 

corporations….

• A modified version of this Senate bill was added to the engrossed version of the House 

bill on November 19, 2021.
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Secondary Sources 
for Legislative History 

• Senate Finance Committee press releases

• Sponsor (Sen. Sherrod Brown) press releases and 

sponsored legislation

• CRS reports

• Use USA.gov to search government websites 
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Agency Chronology 
and History



Agency Chronology and History

Agency Records and Publications

When you need to find historical records and 
publications from an executive branch agency, it can be 
helpful to research the agency's history to determine the 
following possibilities: 

• If the name of an agency was changed

• If new subdivisions were created within an agency

• If a new department, with new subordinate bodies and 
new functions, was created

• Or if an agency and its functions were transferred from 
one department to another.  

Two resources that can help you do this research are 
known as Andriot and the 1909 Checklist.

Finding Tools for Agency History and 
Documents

• Schummer, Paul, John L. Andriot, and Donna Andriot. 
Guide to U.S. Government Publications. Farmington 
Hills, MI: Gale Group.   

• Organized by agency and SuDoc class stem, provides a 
list of series titles and types of materials published under 
each SuDoc stem, inclusive dates, and agency genealogy 
– which agencies have ceased, which have changed 
names and which new ones have been established, with 
the exact chronology.

• Hartwell, Mary A. Checklist of United States Public 
Documents 1789-1909: Congressional: to Close of 
Sixtieth Congress; Departmental: to End of Calendar 
Year 1909. 3d ed., rev. and enl ... Washington: U.S. 
G.P.O., 1911.  
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Immigration 
and 
Naturalization 
Agency 
Chronology
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Dates Name of Agency Department and SuDoc Stem

1891-1903 Immigration Bureau Dept. of Treasury (T 21)

1903-1906 Immigration Bureau Dept. of Commerce and Labor (C 7)

1906-1913
Immigration and Naturalization 

Bureau
Dept. of Commerce and Labor (C 7)

1913-1933 Immigration Bureau Dept. of Labor (L 3)

1913-1933 Naturalization Bureau Dept. of Labor (L 6)

1933-1940
Immigration and Naturalization 

Service (INS)
Dept. of Labor (L 15)

1940- 2003
Immigration and Naturalization 

Service (INS)
Dept. of Justice (J 21)

2003-
U.S. Citizenship and Immigration 

Services (USCIS)
Dept. of Homeland Security (HS 8)

2003-
Immigration and Customs 

Enforcement (ICE)
Dept. of Homeland Security (HS 4.200

2003-
Customs and Border Protection 

(CBP)
Dept. of Homeland Security (HS 4.100)



Learn More About 
Legal Research!

Subtitle



Library of Congress Orientation to Legal 
Research Webinar Series
• The Orientation to Legal Research 

Series is designed to give a basic 
introduction to legal sources and 
research techniques. These 
orientations, taught by legal 
reference librarians, are typically 
offered once a month on a 
rotating basis.

• U.S. Case Law

• U.S. Federal Statutes

• Federal Legislative History

• Tracing Federal Regulations

• Congress.gov
• Announces product enhancements 

via social media.  (Follow them on X). 

• Congress.gov public forum, Sept. 13 
(in-person and online).    

• Update on the enhancements that 
have been made to the site over the 
past year

• Update on the Constitution Annotated, 
and learn about how the Law Library
and the Congress.gov team are 
working to transition the early 
congressional data from our legacy 
Century of Lawmaking site to 
Congress.gov and Law.gov. 
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https://www.loc.gov/research-centers/law-library-of-congress/researcher-resources/legal-research-institute/united-states-law-webinars/
https://twitter.com/congressdotgov
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http://constitution.congress.gov/?loclr=bloglaw
http://www.law.gov/?loclr=bloglaw
https://blogs.loc.gov/law/?new=true&s=%22A+congress.gov+interview%22
https://memory.loc.gov/ammem/amlaw/?loclr=bloglaw
http://www.law.gov/?loclr=bloglaw


Questions?
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Thank you!

Jennifer Morgan

jlbryan@indiana.edu

Indiana University Maurer School of Law
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